ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COWWERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 10, 2003
3:15 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BILL NO 71
"An Act extending the term nation date of the Board of Certified
Direct-Entry M dw ves."
- MOVED HB 71 OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 73
"An Act extending the termnation date of the State Medical
Board. "

- MOVED HB 73 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 74
"An Act extending the termi nation date of the Board of Nursing."

- MOVED HB 74 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 71

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND BOARD OF M DW VES
SPONSOR(S): STATE AFFAI RS

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
01/ 31/ 03 0105 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- February 10, 2003



01/ 31/ 03 0105 (H) L&C, FIN
02/ 10/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 73
SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND STATE MEDI CAL BOARD
SPONSOR( S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) DAHLSTROM

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

02/ 05/ 03 0130 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 03 0130 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 10/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 74

SHORT TI TLE: EXTEND BOARD OF NURSI NG
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE( S) DAHLSTROM

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

02/ 05/ 03 0130 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

02/ 05/ 03 0130 (H L&C, FIN

02/ 10/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As chair of the sponsoring comittee,
presented HB 71, extending the term of the Board of Certified
Direct-Entry Mdw ves; he described his famly's experience with
m dwi ves at the birth of his three children.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

D vision of Legislative Audit

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified about the sunset revi ews
conducted on the three the boards that would be extended in HB
71, HB 73, and HB 74; the audits concluded that the boards
shoul d be extended, and in the case of the Al aska Mdical Board
and the Board of Nursing, the auditor recomended extensions of
ei ght years rather than the typical four years.

KAYE KANNE, Presi dent

M dwi ves Associ ation of Al aska;
Executive Director

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- February 10, 2003



Juneau Famly Birth Center

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in support of HB 71, noting that high
fees have not Iimted entry into the mdw fe field; she answered
guestions about mdw fe training and birthing techniques.

RICK URION, Director

Di vi sion of Cccupational Licensing

Departnent of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in favor of HB 71, HB 73, and HB
74, saying the boards function well.

DANA BROWN, Chair

Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves;

Executive Director, Alaska Fam |y Health and Birth Center
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 71 and noted that
m dwi ves strongly prefer having their own board.

KI MBERLY HANGER, St aff

to Representative Nancy Dahl strom

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about HB 73 and HB 74.

NANCY SANDERS, Chair

Board of Nursing

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Spoke in favor of HB 74, which extends the
term nation date for the Board of Nursing.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-7, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:15 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Dahlstrom Crawford, and CGuttenberg were present
at the call to order. Representatives Gatto and Rokeberg
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 71- EXTEND BOARD OF M DW VES

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- February 10, 2003



CHAI R ANDERSON announced the first order of business was a
hearing on HOUSE BILL NO 71, "An Act extending the term nation
date of the Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves."

Nunber 0077

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE  WEYHRAUCH, Alaska State Legislature,
speaking as chair of the House State Affairs Standing Commttee,
sponsor of HB 71, explained that this legislation that extends
the Board of Certified Drect-Entry Mdw ves through June 30,
2007. He said the continuation of this board was handled in a

stand-al one bill because the profession is significantly
different from other health professions. The fiscal note is
zero. Fees from mdwife licensing cover the admnistrative

costs of the board.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH expl ai ned his personal experience with

the mdw fe profession. Hs three children were born at hone
with the assistance of m dw ves. Representati ve Wyhrauch's
wife selected this birthing option after researching what
m dw ves offer. Each tine, the mdwfe carefully exam ned Ms.

Weyhrauch, nonitored her pregnancy, and evaluated her for risks
such as twins and Caesarian section birth. Bot h the Weyhrauchs
took prenatal classes from the mdwi fe and the hospital and
devel oped contingency plans for energencies. He described these
services, when conservatively handled, as a great asset both in
rural and urban Al aska. The board gives the state oversight
over who's practicing when, where, and how.

Nunber 0445

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted that two of his three children
were born with the assistance of mdw ves, and he supports this
pr of essi on. He asked whether m dwi ves would rather be separate
from related professionals and bear all the adm nistrative cost
t hensel ves or be conbined with another board in order to keep
the cost of their licenses |ower.

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH suggested that a nenber of the mdw fe
board coul d better answer that question.

Number 0575

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, Alaska State Legislature responded to a question from
Representative GQGuttenberg about the legislative audit of the
Board of Certified Drect-Entry M dw ves. The audit [Control

No. 08-20016-02] recommended a four-year extension of the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- February 10, 2003



board's term nation date. In a simlar sunset audit four years
ago, the agency was concerned that the high cost of the
licensing fee was presenting a barrier to entry into the
pr of essi on. In this audit, staff found that those fees have
dropped, but the board is collecting sufficient fees to cover
their expenses. This audit did not exam ne whether the m dw ves
shoul d consider joining another board. In answer to a question
from Representative Crawford, she noted that the biennial fee is
currently $950, down from $1,550 two years ago. Ms. Davi dson,
in response to a comment by Representative Rokeberg, noted that
the Board of Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves received a clean
audi t .

Number 0675

KAYE KANNE, President, M dw ves Association of Al aska; Executive
Director, Juneau Famly Birth Center, told nenbers that she has
practiced as a mdwife in Juneau for 19 years. She testified in
support in HB 71. She said the Board of Certified Direct-Entry
M dwi ves board has done an excellent job of witing and

i npl enenting regul ations. She noted that she was a nenber of
the board from its inception in 1992 through 1999 and was its
chair for four of those years. The board strives for high

standards for CDMs [certified direct-entry mdw ves], and as a
result, she testified, mdwi ves in Al aska are professional, well
trained, and provide safe, excellent <care for wonen and
famlies.

M5. KANNE referred to data fromthe Ofice of Vital Statistics,
Division of Public Health, Departnent of Health and Social
Services, on the percentage of births in Al aska attended by
certified direct-entry mdw ves. She said they delivered al nost
10 percent of the babies born in Alaska |ast year. The
percentage is even higher in sonme parts of the state, for
exanple, alnmost 25 percent in the Matanuska-Susitna Borough.
Al aska's figures are higher than the nationw de average, where
m dwi ves attend approximately 5 percent of the births.

M5. KANNE opi ned that Al aska has one of the best mdw fery |aws
in the United States. Many other states look to Alaska as an
exanpl e when passing mdw fery legislation. Sone 21 states have
licensing for direct-entry mdw ves and 8 nore have |egislation
pendi ng.

Nunmber 0830

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- February 10, 2003



M5. KANNE answered Representative Rokeberg's questions from the
Legislative Audit report about why only 7 out of 30 apprentices
are still active. She described supervising apprentices during
her 20-year career. The 1long hours, low pay, and huge
responsi bility discourage many students. She has supervised two
apprenticeships who finished their training and becane |icensed.
There's no requirenent for a wuniversity degree in Al aska;
Al aska's direct-entry mdwifery Jlaws are based on the
apprenticeship nodel. There are several nationally credited
prograns that instructors use when they supervise mdwfe
trai nees; Ms. Kanne explained that she uses the National College
of Mdw fery out of New Mexico, which is a degree program

Number 0928

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted his concern about high licensure
costs. He cited a recent disciplinary action by the board, the
cost of which nmust be covered by the mdw fe licensing fee. He
expressed concern that the fee would rise again. He noted it
was a key issue when the board was created because of its
potential barrier to entry; the anount of the licensing fee is
al ways a consideration in |licensing an occupation.

M5. KANNE replied that the licensing fee was $1,300 for the nost
recent renewal of Decenber 31, so it has risen from $950,
probably because of the investigation. As the president of the
M dwi ves Associ ation of Al aska, she reported that nenbers feel
it is very inportant to have an independent board, and they do
not want to be nmerged with any other board. Menbers are willing
to pay the higher licensing fees, she said. They are continuing

to recruit mdwves in the state. The Juneau Famly Birth
Center and other nonprofit birth centers in Alaska pay their
m dwi ves' |icensing fees. They try to assure that no one is

prohi bited from practicing because of the |licensing fees.
Number 1085

M5. KANNE, in response to questions from Representative Rokeberg
about whether mdwives can afford the fees, said mdwfery
services pay for thenselves and the mdw ves' salaries. She
said the total fees for a childbirth at the Juneau Famly Birth
Center range from $3,000 to $5,000, which is about half the cost
of a normal delivery at the hospital.

Nunber 1127

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- February 10, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked if mdwfe services are covered by
i nsur ance. He asked about the process, and timefrane, and the
cost of getting licensed as a certified direct-entry mdw fe.

M5. KANNE answered that mdwife training in Al aska uses an

apprenticeshi p nodel . Students nust finish an academ c program
approved by the national accreditation program for m dw ves and
must finish <clinical requirements under state |aw Most

apprentices take three to four years because they nust assist at
60 births. The cost of apprenticeship varies around the state.
At the Juneau birth center, for exanple, students pay $200 a
nont h and work at the center.

Number 1240

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about the protocols to transfer
a patient froma mdwife to a doctor in case of conplications.

M5. KANNE replied that certified direct-entry mdw ves are
i ndependent practitioners who do not practice under the
supervi sion of physicians. State | aw recommends - but does not
require - that patients see a physician for a conplete physica
exam She said she believes m dw ves and nedi cal professionals
in Juneau and around the state have good working rel ationships.
Al aska | aw clearly defines what m dwi ves can and cannot do.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether there has been a
situation in which sonmeone used a mdwife instead of wusing a
physi ci an.

M5. KANNE replied no, not to her know edge.
Number 1360

M5. KANNE, in response to a question from Representative Lynn
about whether mdwives administer pain nedication during
childbirth, answered that no, mdw ves use natural techniques
such as massage and water to create a situation in which pain
medi cation isn't necessary.

M5. KANNE answered a question from Representative Gatto about
whet her nen are allowed to becone m dw ves. She said that yes
they are, although there are none that she knows of practicing
in Al aska.

Nunmber 1388

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- February 10, 2003



RI CK URI ON, Director, Division of CGccupational Li censi ng,
Department of Community & Econom c Devel opnent, said the Board
of Certified Direct-Entry Mdw ves functions well and within its
budget. He urged the committee to pass HB 71.

Nunber 1430

DANA BROWN, Chair, Board of Certified Direct-Entry M dw ves;
Executive Director, Alaska Famly Health and Birth Center,
testified in favor of extending the board. She said the board
has been doing its work of maintaining high standards of care
for the public's safety. The m dw ves are able and wlling to
pay the licensing fees required to nmaintain a separate board.

Nunber 1504

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report HB 71 out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recommendati ons and the attached fiscal note. There
being no objection, HB 72 was reported from the House Labor and
Commerce Standing Conmittee.

HB 73- EXTEND STATE MEDI CAL BOARD

Nunmber 1546

CHAI R ANDERSON announced a hearing on HOUSE BILL NO 73, "An Act
extending the term nation date of the State Medical Board."

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM sponsor of HB 73, testified that the
bill extends the termination date of the State Medical Board for
four years. She described the nenbership of the eight-nenber
board, which is appointed by the governor. She also said:

The board serves the public interest by establishing
the m nimum educati on and work-experience requirenents

t hat i ndi viduals nust neet to beconme |icensed
physi ci ans, osteopaths, podiatrists, paranedics, and
physi ci an assi stants. The board further serves the

public interest by investigating conplaints against
| icensed professionals and taking disciplinary action
when appropriate and necessary. The board has
consistently proven to be efficient; therefore |
recommend that the State Medical Board be extended to
June 30, [2007], and | wurge you to vote for its
passage.

Number 1641

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- February 10, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked why the sponsor didn't follow the
reconmendation of the legislative audit report for an eight-year
ext ensi on.

KI MBERLY HANGER, Staff to Representative Nancy Dahlstrom Al aska
State Legislature, quoted AS 08.03.020, which sets the four-year
extension for a board unless it is continued or reestablished
for a | onger period.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that the |egislature can continue
the board longer than the four-year period if it chooses,
depending on the level of confidence the |legislature has in the

board's worKk. The board has been in the headlines frequently,
hol di ng disciplinary hearings, and perhaps, he surm sed, that
nmeans it's doing a good job. It's a judgnent call how long to
extend the sunset provision. Oten, the legislative audits

expose problens in the statute or the regulations of a board. A
shorter sunset period allows the legislature to review the
results of previous changes to the |aw

Number 1811
PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit Division,

Al aska State Legislature, explained that the audit report [ No.
08-20017-02] recomrended an eight-year extension to 2011 for

several reasons. Auditors found that the board was actively
wor king on statutory and regul atory devel opnment of itenms in the
public interest. The board was functioning snoothly and there
were no financial problems with its operations. It's unusual

for her office to recommend such a lengthy extension of the
board, she said, and the statutes indicate a preference for
four-year extensions. She rem nded legislators that they can
ask her agency to review a board if they see problens.

V5. DAVI DSON answered Representative Lynn's questions about the
details of board nenbers' terns and appoi ntnents. She said the
ei ght nenbers' terns are four-years and staggered; nenbers are
appoi nted by the governor and approved by the |egislature.

V5. DAVIDSON replied to Representative Rokeberg's query about
the statute controlling the extension of +the boards, AS
08.03.020. She said the statute gives legislators |eeway to put
what ever year they'd |like on the term nation date.

Nunmber 1965

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- February 10, 2003



MS. DAVI DSON, as requested by Representative Rokeberg, explained
the one-year closeout period provided by state law if the
| egi slature chooses not to extend the termnation date of a
board. She explained that the |licensing function may renmain and
be adm nistered by the Division of GCccupational Licensing even
if the board dissolves. Wien a board shuts down, the division

| oses the voice of the professionals it is regulating. It is
nore difficult to nake changes in statute and regul ati ons, which
as a result tend to get stale. Because a board only neets

several times a year, those activities would get shelved during
a w nd-down year.

V5. DAVI DSON answered a question from Representative Guttenberg
about the State Medical Board' s taking an active role in shaping
state laws and regulations. She said its nenbers testify before
the legislature on bills and devel op regul ations to support the
statutes.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted the board's 413 investigative
cases referenced in the audit and asked whether any resulting
| egal chal |l enges handl ed by the Departnent of Law have affected
t he board' s budget.

M5. DAVIDSON replied that nost tinmes when the Departnent of Law
does work associated with a licensing board, the departnent
charges the board for those services.

Number 2135

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM said that as the sponsor of the bill,
she favors the four-year period because the nedical industry is
changing so rapidly, and this allows the legislature to review
the board again in four years.

M5. HANGER noted that the conmmttee's bill packet includes a
letter fromthe former director of the Division of GCccupational
Li censi ng, Cat herine Reardon, agreeing wth the audit's

reconmended ei ght -year extension.
Nunber 2176

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO agreed with the sponsor's choice of a four-
year extension. He commented that a board mght increase its
activities as it sees a termnation date approaching. He has
foll owed the news of the board's investigations reported in the
newspaper. He has worked as a paranedic in Anchorage for 28

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- February 10, 2003



years and is famliar with sone of the professionals being
i nvesti gat ed.

M5. DAVIDSON replied to Representative CQuttenberg's question
about whether a board's activity increases as it nears its
term nation date. She said it depends on the particul ar board.
Some boards prefer to have their sunset extension handled
separately from any changes to their governing statues. Q her
boards may be going through growi ng pains and may be nore active
before a sunset review

Number 2355

RICK URION, Director, Dvision of CQOccupational Li censi ng,
Departnent of Community & Economic Developnent, said the
di vision supports HB 73 and asked the commttee to pass it on.
He said the departnent has no problemw th either a four-year or
ei ght -year extension of the board. Setting the term of the
board does not affect the four-year term of the nenbers, and
he's not aware of any boards that becone nore active at the
approach of sunset.

TAPE 03-7, SIDE B
Number 2370

MR URION said the Medical Board is extrenely active and has
handl ed a nunber of disciplinary actions, which causes their

adm nistrative costs to rise. He discussed how diplomacy
actions affect the licensing fees, and for professions wth
fewer nmenbers, that can have a severe inpact. He said the State
Medi cal Board is about $190,000 in the hole, and he predicted
next year wll be a quieter year wth |ess investigative

activity. The fee for physicians is $590 as of the beginning of
the year, and the next renewal is in 2004.

MR URION replied to Representative Lynn's question about when
an investigation becones public. He said under current division
policies, a conplaint becones public right away. But the
division is working on adding an internediate step in which a
conplaint would be screened for validity before beginning an
i nvestigation.

Number 2139
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how a patient can take action agai nst

an inconpetent physician. He also questioned whether the
medi cal profession is truly self-policing.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- February 10, 2003



MR URION replied that the patient can file a conplaint about
the doctor with the Division of GQccupational Licensing. He
added that it's easier for physicians to assess the conpetency
of their peers, now that they ve been relieved of the liability
under a change in state | aw [AS 08. 64. 362] several years ago.

CHAIR ANDERSON invited M. Uion to brief the conmttee at a
future neeting about conplaint procedures and the budget i npact
of these procedures.

Nunmber 1935

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM in response to a question from
Representative Rokeberg, said she is not <confortable wth
increasing the four-year extension, but she is willing to talk
to Senator Con Bunde, who is sponsoring a simlar bill

Nunmber 1856

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 73 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection, HB 73 was reported from House Labor
and Comrerce Standing Committee.

HB 74- EXTEND BOARD OF NURSI NG

Number 1814

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be consideration of HOUSE BILL NO 74, "An Act extending the
term nation date of the Board of Nursing."

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM as sponsor of HB 74, noted that it
extends the termnation date of the Board of Nurses to June 30,
2007. She described the nenbership of the board and noted that
it est abl i shes m ni mum  education and wor k experi ence
requirenents for licensed nurses and certified nursing aides.
The board also investigates conplaints against | i censed
professionals and takes disciplinary action when appropriate.
She said the board acts efficiently, and she urged the conmttee
to pass the bill

Number 1753

KI MBERLY HANGER, Staff to Representative Nancy Dahlstrom Al aska
State Legislature, testified that the Division of Legislative

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- February 10, 2003



Audit reviewed the operations of the Board of Nursing and
recormmended the extension of the board. Each committee nmenber's
packet includes a letter from the fornmer director of the
Di vi si on of Qccupat i onal Li censi ng, Cat heri ne Rear don,
reconmendi ng t he extension of the board.

Nunber 1712

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked whether the sponsor considered
addi ng statutory changes to t he bi |l based on t he
reconmendations from the auditors report [No. 08-20018-02]. He
pointed out that the report highlighted two issues: noti fying
the Board of Pharmacy of changes to the prescriptive authority
of nurse practitioners and nurse anesthetists and developing a
sel f-evaluation nonitoring checklist for approved nursing aide
trai ni ng prograns.

M5. HANGER replied that these are regulatory matters that the
board can deal with internally.

Number 1630

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor, Legislative Audit Division,
Al aska State Legislature, replied to Representative Rokeberg
that the two recommendations in the audit are operational, and
that the Board of Nursing responded to both issues with plans of
action.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked Ms. Davidson to explain why this
audit also recommends an eight-year extension on the Board of
Nursing and to explain to the commttee the scheduling and cost
of sunset audits.

Nunber 1578

M5. DAVIDSON replied that while the board must cover the full
cost of its operations with license fees, it does not pay the
cost of legislative hearings or audits. An audit can cost
between $8,000 and $20,000, depending on the results. For
exanple, the State Medical Board and the Board of Nursing audits
are | ess expensive because the boards are well established and

function snoothly. Some of the controversial issues do not
relate to the board's operations. The Division of Cccupationa
Li censing conducts investigations, and its work rnust be

prioritized because it serves the boards across the occupations.
The boards do not have control over investigations, which in
sone cases are controversial and hit the newspapers.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- February 10, 2003



Number 1387

M5. DAVIDSON, in response to Representative Rokeberg, agreed
that the legislature would save one sunset audit if the board

were extended eight years instead of four. She said the
auditors would nove to the next priority on their list and dea
with their backlog sooner. The length of board extensions is

conpletely up to the Ilegislature. Wen the state adopted the
sunset law, the legislature wanted to keep tabs on what's
happening in the occupations, helping ensure that they are
operating in the public's best interest. The D vision of
Legislative Audit does not lightly recommend eight-year
ext ensi ons.

Nunmber 1268

RI CK  URI ON, Director, Division of CQccupational Li censi ng,
Department of Community & Econom ¢ Devel opnent, testified that
his division favors HB 74, the extension of the Board of
Nur si ng. He rem nded the commttee that if |egislators extend
the board for eight years, they always have the option to
request an audit.

Number 1109

NANCY SANDERS, Chair, Board of Nursing, spoke in support of HB
74 and said she was avail able to answer questions.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG r ecount ed how he sponsored a budget bill
in 2000 which allowed the Board of Nursing |licensees to raise
their own fees in order to replace |ost grant noney. He asked
about the outcone of that project.

M5. SANDERS answered that she was not on the Board of Nursing
when this event took place and so she was not famliar with the
proj ect.

[ SANDY PERRY- PROVOST, Lobbyist, Alaska Nurses Association, said
she did not know the answer to Representative Rokeberg's
guestion. ]

Nunber 0960

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to report HB 74 out of commttee with
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- February 10, 2003



There being no objections, HB 74 was reported from the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Committee.

ADJ OQURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
4:40 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- February 10, 2003



